CITY OF THE DALLES PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER:

Thursday, December 17, 2009
City Hall Council Chambers
313 Court Streets
The Dalles, OR 97058
Conducted in a handicap accessible room

Chair Lavier called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.

BOARD
MEMBERS PRESENT: Bruce Lavier
Mark Poppoff
Benjamin Hoey
Ted Bryant
BOARD
MEMBERS ABSENT: Ron Ahlberg
Dean Wilcox
Chris Zukin
STAFK PRESENT: City Attorney Gene Parker
Community Development Department Director Dan Durow
Senior Planner Richard Gassman
Administrative Secretary Brenda Green
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Senior Planner Gassman shared that the resolution had not been prepared so item number seven would

need to be tabled until the next meeting.

It was moved by Bryant and seconded by Hoey to approve the agenda as modified. The motion carried

unanimously; Ahlberg, Wilcox and Zukin absent.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Commissioner Bryant pointed out that there was one spelling error on page six of the September 17,

2009 minutes.

It was moved by Bryant and seconded by Poppoff to approve the minutes of September 17, 2009 as
modified. The motion carried with Lavier, Poppoff and Bryant voting in favor, Hoey abstained;

Ahlberg, Wilcox and Zukin absent.

It was moved by Poppoff and seconded by Lavier to approve the minutes of October 1, 2009 as
submitted. The motion did not carry due to both Bryant and Hoey abstaining. Approval of the minutes

was tabled until the next meeting.

Planning Commission Minutes

Page 1 of 5



It was moved by Hoey and seconded by Poppoff to approve the minutes of October 15, 2009 as
submitted. The motion carried with Lavier, Poppoff and Hoey voting in favor, Bryant abstained;

Ahlberg, Wilcox and Zukin absent.

PUBLIC COMMENT:
Randy Cole, 816 E 20" Street, introduced himself as Chairman of the Traffic Safety Committee. He

stated that he was there to beg the help of the Planning Commission in regards to off street parking.
Mr. Cole gave several examples of developments that do not have enough off street parking and
requested that the Commission look carefully at applications rather than just accepting what staff

recommends.

Commissioner Bryant explained that the City does require a certain number of parking spaces per
dwelling unit. There was a general discussion about the examples Mr. Cole gave. Senior Planner
Gassman stated that he would look into the specific locations mentioned; poi}lting out that sometimes
development happens without going through the proper channels.

John Nelson, 524 W 3™ Place, stated that the Comprehensive Plan was not very directive and rather
aspirational. He then pointed out the amendment that was done in 2007 but not adopted. Senior
Planner Gassman clarified that he was referring to the portion regarding the Urban Growth Boundary
expansion completed by Winterbrook Planning. Nelson affirmed that he was looking at that portion,
and asked if it was possible to get it accepted. Gassman explained the work that needs to be completed
before it can be approved by the State and the Gorge Commission. He pointed out the expense of the
project and shared that grants are being applied for. Mr. Nelson shared that his question came from a
concem to protect Chenowith Creek and suggested that amendments such as the one being discussed
would help the creek. He felt that getting the amendment approved would help with future

applications.

LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING on proposed LUDO changes:

Senior Planner Gassman explained that a legislative public hearing could be conducted in a more open
format, and suggested that the Commission allow members of the public to comment as the proposed
changes are discussed rather than waiting until the end. Chair Lavier felt that allowing comment
throughout the discussion would be the most efficient; the Commission expressed their agreement by

mutual consent.

Senior Planner Gassman went over the steps of the process that had been completed so far and
explained that the goal for the hearing was to conclude with a recommendation to City Council who
will give the final approval for the changes. Gassman then went over the forty-six proposed LUDO

amendments.

Amendment #1 — Commissioner Bryant asked for examples. Director Durow gave an example of a
parking lot being used for a two day community festival would not need to be specially paved.

Amendment #2-4 — No discussion

Amendment #5 — After Senior Planner Gassman went over the proposed rules around submitting
written comments, Commissioner Bryant asked if one page meant one sided or two sided. There was a
general discussion about one versus two sided, as well as minimum font sizes. The consensus of the

Planning Commission Minutes

Page2 of 5



Commission was that one page meant one sided.

Chair Lavier brought up the concern of having enough time to review large amounts of written
comments especially when they’re submitted right before or during the hearing. City Attorney Parker
stated that in that situation the Commission has the ability to continue the hearing to a later date in
order to properly review the material. Director Durow suggested accepting all of the verbal public
testimony, then closing the hearing and taking time to read the written material. Parker agreed, adding
the need to be cognizant of allowing the public the chance to completely present their case/comments.

Amendment #6 — City Attorney Parker pointed out that the De Novo definition was based on current
case law and that if the definition ever changes, the LUDO will need to be modified as well.

Amendment #7-28 — no discussion

Amendment #29- Commissioner Bryant asked for clarification of a “wind {ievice”. There was a
general discussion about what could be considered a wind device. Commissioner Hoey pointed out
that the Wasco County ordinances use the term “Wind Energy Conversion System”. The Commission
and staff agreed to change all LUDO references of “wind device” to the more descriptive term of

“Wind Energy Conversion System”.

Amendment #30 — no discussion

Amendment #31 — Senior Planner Gassman pointed out that he would change the wording “wind
device” to “Wind Energy Conversion System” in this amendment as well.

Amendment #32-41 — no discussion

Amendment #42 — After Senior Planner Gassman explained the amendment; City Attorney Parker
shared his concern about the issue in regards to due process. He stated that he will be doing more
research about the legal side of notifying the sign owner before a sign can be removed. Gassman
suggested approving the amendment as is, with the knowledge that Parker may be recommending a

change in the language at a future time.

Chair Lavier suggested that signs should be required to have a phone number so that the owner or
person responsible could be contacted.

Amendment #43-46 — no discussion

Senior Planner Gassman summed up the LUDO amendment discussion by verifying that changes are
going to be made to Amendment numbers 5, 29, and 31 and that City Attorney Parker will be looking
into possible wording changes for number 42. Senior Planner Gassman brought up the discussion on
font sizes and asked if the Commission would like to make any specific requirements. After a few
general comments the Commission decided not to specify a minimum font size.

Senior Planner Gassman stated that he would bring back the modified amendments as well as a
resolution to the next Planning Commission meeting.

Planning Commission Minutes
Page 3of5



John Nelson, 524 W 3™ Place stated that he was appearing before the Commission on behalf of the
Citizens for Responsible Development of The Dalles, and that they were requesting that an Economic
Impact Analysis ordinance be added to the LUDO. Mr. Nelson submitted a letter from Luise
Langheinrich on behalf of the group, and information regarding a similar ordinance from the state of

Maine.

Mr. Nelson also expressed the group’s frustration during controversial hearings such as Walmart and
the adult book store, of needing to fit into the framework of the quasi-judicial or legislative hearing
process. He asked if a review process step could be added that would be more informal, so that when a
controversial or large scale application is received, it could be introduced to the community in a way

that they were allowed to voice their questions or concerns.

Director Durow responded that some communities in Oregon require an applicant to meet with a
neighborhood group before an application is even accepted by the city. Durow explained that the
decision makers would not be able to participate in those meetings because it would be in direct
conflict with the judicial process. He also shared that the idea had been brought up before.

Chair Lavier explained to Mr. Nelson that adding something to, or changing the LUDO is a complete
process and that for this round of LUDO amendments the Commission was currently in the final stage
so the request would need to be considered in the next round of amendments. Lavier also expressed his
feeling that the Commission does allow citizens the chance to speak and to ask questions.

Director Durow added more information about the neighborhood meetings, sharing some of the results
those communities had experienced.

Mr. Nelson asked if the current meeting was the appropriate time to ask for a similar process to be
implemented in The Dalles. Director Durow replied yes. The Commission and staff had a general
discussion about how a process like that might be implemented, what results could potentially be
expected, and if it would be a mandatory process. Durow summarized that generally what happens is
that a company hears what the communities’ concerns are and then has the opportunity to address any
changes before submitting the application. Durow added that in general communities have found that
there are less objections and appeals when the public is fully informed before an application is

submitted.

The Commission agreed to add both of Mr. Nelson’s requests to the discussion list for the next round
of potential LUDO changes. Chair Lavier suggested gathering information from communities that
have implemented the neighborhood meeting idea before the next round of LUDO changes.

Randy Cole, 816 E 20®, voiced his concern about four mobile homes whose main entrances were not
facing the street. This ordinance was the subject of LUDO Amendment #11 that was mentioned earlier.
Chair Lavier explained that several were installed before the ordinance was written. Director Durow
added that some of them were the reason the ordinance was written. Senior Planner Gassman assured
Mr. Cole that the City Council has made it clear that they want houses to be oriented to the street if at

all possible.

Commissioner Bryant brought back the subject of community meetings and asked if the hill removal
and retaining wall being constructed on Nineteenth Street would have been an issue that would have

Planning Commission Minutes

Page 4 of 5



been required to have such a meeting. Senior Planner Gassman shared that from his understanding, the
meetings are more for a business, or larger developments in terms of something that would generate a

lot of traffic or activity.

Mr. Cole asked if a community meeting would be held for a subdivision application. Director Durow
and Senior Planner Gassman both felt that generally it would not be required for that, but also pointed
out that the policy could be designed however the community wanted it to be designed.

Director Durow clarified that even though a community meeting is held and the community does not
like what is happening does not mean that the application will not be approved. He stressed that the
process is not a vote, but rather a time to express concerns and perhaps arrive at some sort of an
understanding. If the application is an allowed use and meets criteria, the application will most likely

be approved.

J
Commissioner Bryant moved to recommend the LUDO amendments to City Council with changes as
discussed and for staff to bring back a resolution including said changes to the next meeting. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Poppoff and carried unanimously; Ahlberg, Wilcox and Zukin

absent.

COMMISSIONER/STAFF COMMENTS

Commissioner Poppoff inquired about a requirement for garage faces to be set back behind house
faces, explaining that he had seen several around town being built with the garage out further than the
house. Senior Planner Gassman replied that the garage is not required to be set behind the house; it’s
only required to be set twenty feet back from the property line.

Commissioner Bryant brought up Mr. Cole’s concern about not enough parking spaces for several
specific projects and properties. There was a general discussion between the Commissioners, Mr. Cole
and Senior Planner Gassman about where the properties were and what the specific concerns were.

The discussion ended with Gassman promising to look into the specifics of the properties that were
mentioned to determine if there were parking requirements set for each of them.

NEXT MEETING: The next scheduled meeting is January 7, 2010.

ADJOURNMENT: The Planning Commission meeting was adjourned at 8:34 p.m.

Submitted by
Brenda Green, Administrative Secretary

Dpe E Jo

Bruce Lavier, Planning Commission Chair

Planning Commission Minutes
Page5 of 5



